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University of Alaska
Explanation of Differences Between
Fund and GASB 35 Statements
June 30, 2008

Introduction

In Fiscal Year 2002 the University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 35, which primarily changed the presentation of its
externally audited financial statements to a business-type format. The supplemental
schedules in this publication show financial data reported in a fund group format.
However, a summary Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets are presented on a GASB 35 basis, by Major Administrative Unit
(MAU) on pages 51 - 53. The purpose of this section is to provide a narrative
explanation of the major differences between the fund group presentation and the “GASB
35” presentation. Additional explanation of the GASB 35 format can be found in the
audited financial statements, especially the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Balance Sheet vs. Statement of Net Assets

The fund group presentation uses the title of Balance Sheet, representing that total assets
equals total liabilities plus total fund balances. The GASB 35 presentation uses the title
of Statement of Net Assets, and arrives at a total net asset number by subtracting total
liabilities from total assets. In either statement, fund balance, or net assets, represents the
book equity of the university.

The GASB 35 statements show additional line items not reported on the fund statements.
These additional lines disaggregate certain groups of accounts in order to show assets or
liabilities in order of liquidity and to add further description. For example, Cash and
Investments as reported on the fund statements are reported on the GASB 35 statements
in the following line items: Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investments,
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, and Long-term investments. However, there is no
difference in total assets between the fund and GASB 35 statements.

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances vs. Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets

There is a significant difference in the purpose and basis of preparation between the
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets (SRECNA). The fund statement shows activity by fund group and
indicates the growth or decline in fund balances. As such, the statement supports a
measurement of resource accountability by similar fund types and has an internal focus.

The SRECNA is designed to measure performance of the university as though it were a
business, by grouping revenues and expenses according to an operating or non-operating
classification.



Significant differences between the Statement of Changes in Fund Balances and the
SRECNA include:

e The SRECNA reports depreciation expense, whereas the Statement of Changes in
Fund Balances reports charges for capital expenditures (e.g. equipment) in the
various fund groups, but primarily the unrestricted fund. Therefore, expenses
listed on the SRECNA do not include payments made for capitalized equipment.
Such payments are recorded on the Statement of Net Assets as capital assets.

e The SCRECNA reports Student Tuition and Fees and some auxiliary revenues net
of a tuition allowance. The amount of the allowance is a reclassification from the
Student Aid line item.

e In accordance with GASB 35 guidance, the SRECNA reports state appropriations
as a nonoperating revenue.

e Expenditures incurred in the unexpended plant group that were not capitalized are
reported in an appropriate functional line item on the SRECNA.

Further information may be obtained from Statewide Fund Accounting at (907) 450-
8063.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of the University of Alaska (university) for the years ended June 30, 2008 (fiscal year
2008) and June 30, 2007 (fiscal year 2007), with selected comparative information for the year
ended June 30, 2006. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements including the notes thereto, which follow this section.

Using the Financial Statements

The university’s financial report includes the basic financial statements of the university and the
financial statements of the University of Alaska Foundation (foundation), a legally separate, non
profit component unit. The three basic financial statements of the university are: the Statement
of Net Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and the Statement
of Cash Flows. These statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The
university is presented as a business-type activity. GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities,
establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and
classifies resources into three net asset categories — unrestricted, restricted, and invested in capital
assets, net of related debt.

The University of Alaska Foundation is presented as a component unit of the university in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units. The foundation’s financial statements include the Statement of Financial
Position and the Statement of Activities and these statements are presented as originally audited
according to generally accepted accounting principles and Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements.

The foundation was established to solicit donations and to hold and manage such assets for the
exclusive benefit of the university. Resources managed by the foundation and distributions made
to the university are governed by the foundation’s Board of Trustees (operating independently
and separately from the university’s Board of Regents). The component unit status of the
foundation indicates that significant resources are held by the foundation for the sole benefit of
the university. However, the university is not accountable for, nor has ownership of, the
foundation’s resources.

Statement of Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the university at the end of the
fiscal year and includes all assets and liabilities of the university. The difference between total
assets and total liabilities (net assets) is one indicator of the financial condition of the university,
while the change in net assets is an indicator of whether the financial condition has improved or
declined during the year.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

A summarized comparison of the university’s assets, liabilities and net assets at June 30, 2008,
2007 and 2006 follows ($ in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Assets:

Current assets $ 105,847 $ 101,667 $ 106,614

Other assets 306,979 296,233 251,405

Capital assets, net of depreciation 792.161 736,894 731,010
Total assets 1,204,987 1,134,794 1,089,029
Liabilities:

Current liabilities 88,894 84,421 80,444

Noncurrent liabilities 177,290 162,923 161,730
Total liabilities 266,184 247.344 242.174
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of debt 671,700 619,665 608,596
Restricted — expendable 73,856 82,736 58,590

Restricted — nonexpendable 126,752 124,114 123,275

Unrestricted 66,495 60,935 56,394
Total net assets $ 938,803 $ 887.450 $ 846,855

Major changes to assets and liabilities during fiscal year 2008 include increased operating and
restricted cash and cash equivalents, a decline in endowment investments, increased accounts
receivable, growth in net capital assets, and increased liabilities due to construction activity and
new debt issuance. In fiscal year 2008, the university experienced overall growth in net assets of
$51.4 million, or 5.8 percent. Each of these changes is discussed in more detail in the following
sections.

Total assets increased by $70.2 million during fiscal year 2008 to a total of $1.2 billion. Total
assets are categorized as either current assets or noncurrent assets on the Statement of Net Assets.
Key components of current assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and
accounts receivable. Noncurrent assets are comprised mainly of restricted cash and cash
equivalents, investments and net capital assets.

Operating cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2008 were a positive $8.6 million as compared to
a negative $0.5 million at June 30, 2007. Operating cash and cash equivalents includes checking
accounts, change funds, and the university’s repurchase agreements. Near the end of fiscal year
2008 funds were moved from short-term investments to cash to cover liabilities such as payroll,
that were due in July.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents increased from $4.1 million at June 30, 2007 to $19.7
million at June 30, 2008. Increased restricted cash and cash equivalents are mostly attributed to
unexpended general revenue bond proceeds from the issuance of Series O general revenue bonds
in January 2008.

Short-term investments decreased from $39.3 million at June 30, 2007 to $26.5 million at June
30, 2008. As discussed earlier, funds were moved from this category to cash at year end. These
funds were invested in the Commonfund’s Short Term Fund and Intermediate Term Fund, which



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

had a 5.25 percent and 5.54 percent total return for the year ended June 30, 2007 and a 3.21
percent and 0.54 percent total return for the year ended June 30, 2008, respectively.

Long-term investments increased $0.4 million to $83.9 million for fiscal year 2008.
Approximately, $47.6 million was invested in the Commonfund’s Absolute Return Fund, $27.4
million in the Commonfund’s Multi-Strategy Bond Fund, and $8.9 million in various bond or
construction-related funds. The Absolute Return Fund had a negative 1.89 percent total return for
the year ended June 30, 2008 and a positive 13.17 percent total return for the year ended June 30,
2007. The Multi-Strategy Bond Fund had a 6.14 percent total return for the year ended June 30,
2008 and 6.98 percent total return for the year ended June 30, 2007.

Endowment investments at June 30, 2008 were $145.2 million as compared to $148.7 million at
June 30, 2007. This decrease was primarily caused by a negative 2.4 percent total return in 2008
as compared to a positive 17.9 percent total return in 2007.

Net accounts receivable increased $8.2 million from $53.6 million at June 30, 2007 to $61.8
million at June 30, 2008. Growth in accounts receivable is primarily due to an increase in capital
construction activity in process at year end which increased capital receivables from $6.6 million
at June 30, 2007 to $12.6 million at June 30, 2008. Year end construction activity attributed to
increased receivables includes $4.6 million for the University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA)
Integrated Science Building, $0.7 million for the University of Alaska Fairbanks (UAF) Tanana
Valley Campus renovation, and $0.6 million for UAA fire alarm system upgrades. The other
components of accounts receivable consist of tuition and fees, sponsored programs, and auxiliary
services. See Note 3 of the financial statements for accounts receivable detail.

Net capital assets at June 30, 2008 were $792.2 million as compared to $736.9 million at June 30,
2007. For further discussion, see Note 6 of the financial statements for capital asset detail, and
the Capital and Debt Activities section which follows.

Total liabilities are categorized as either current liabilities or noncurrent liabilities on the
Statement of Net Assets. Current liabilities are primarily comprised of accounts payable, accrued
payroll and other expenses, insurance and risk management payables, current debt and student
deposits. Noncurrent assets are comprised mostly of long-term debt and net pension and OPEB
obligations. Total liabilities increased by $18.8 million during fiscal year 2008 to a total of $266.2
million. Increased liabilities are mainly attributed to:

e The increase in accounts payable from $10.8 million at June 30, 2007 to $13.6 million at
June 30, 2008 is reflective of increased capital construction activity in process at year
end. Construction activity constituted 70 percent, or $9.4 million of the accounts payable
balance at year end as compared to 55 percent or $5.9 million, the year before. The
remaining accounts payable balance represents amounts due for recurring supplies and
services for operations.

e Long-term debt financing increased with the issuance of Series O general revenue bonds
totaling $23.8 million in fiscal year 2008. The majority of this bond is for the UAA
Parking Garage as discussed in the Capital and Debt Activities section that follows.

Unrestricted net assets increased $5.6 million from June 30, 2007 to June 30, 2008. At year end,
$29.8 million of the $66.5 million total is designated for specific purposes or otherwise limited by



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

contractual agreements with external parties. See Note 7 of the financial statements for a detailed
list of these designations.

Fiscal Year 2007 Comparisons (Statement of Net Assets)

Significant comments about changes between 2006 and 2007 that were noted in fiscal year 2007
Management’s Discussion and Analysis are summarized below:

Major changes from 2006 to 2007 on the Statement of Net Assets included a reduction in cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments, long-term investment growth, increased
accounts receivable and increased liabilities due to the net pension and other postemployment
benefit obligations, and accrued expenses. Overall, the financial position of the university
improved in fiscal year 2007 as indicated by the growth in net assets of $40.6 million or 4.8
percent. For comparative purposes, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and long-
term investments in the June 30, 2007 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the presentation in the June 30, 2008 financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets reflected a decrease in cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments, and an increase in long-term investments. Cash and cash equivalents at June 30,
2007 were a negative $0.5 million as compared to a positive $1.3 million in 2006. Additionally,
short-term investments decreased from $47.1 million at June 30, 2006 to $39.3 million at June 30,
2007. In fiscal year 2007, the university began investing more of the university’s core operating
funds in long-term investments. At June 30, 2007, long-term investments were $83.5 million as
compared to $65.6 million at June 30, 2006. Approximately, $41.5 million was invested in the
Commonfund’s Absolute Return Fund, $33.2 million in the Commonfund’s Multi-Strategy Bond
Fund, and $8.8 million in various operating and capital bond or construction-related funds. The
Absolute Return Fund had a total return of 13.17 percent for the year ended June 30, 2007 and a
10.77 percent total return for the year ended June 30, 2006. The Multi-Strategy Bond Fund (a
new university investment in fiscal year 2006) had a 6.98 percent total return for the year ended
June 30, 2007.

Net accounts receivable increased 11.5 percent, from $48.1 million at June 30, 2006 to $53.6
million at June 30, 2007. This growth was primarily due to an increase in net sponsored program
receivables.

Total liabilities increased 2.1 percent from $242.2 million at June 30, 2006 to $247.3 million at
June 30, 2007. Increased liabilities were attributed to:

e The State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) combined net pension
and OPEB obligations increased from $25.4 million at June 30, 2006 to $30.8 million at
June 30, 2007.

e Accrued expenses increased from $4.2 million at June 30, 2006 to $9.5 million at June
30, 2007 due to agreed upon net settlement costs of $4.65 million for the University of
Alaska Museum of the North construction activity.

Unrestricted net assets increased $4.5 million from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2007.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents the results of
operations for the university as a whole. Revenues, expenses and other changes in net assets are
reported as either operating or nonoperating. Significant recurring sources of university revenue,
such as state appropriations and investment earnings, are defined by GASB Statement No. 35 as

nonoperating.

A summarized comparison of the university’s revenues, expenses and changes in net assets for
the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 follows ($ in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Operating revenues $ 356,624 $ 352,410 $ 341,205
Operating expenses (716.476) (672,802) (631,372)

Operating loss (359,852) (320,392) (290,167)
Net nonoperating revenues 325.545 320,205 272,422
Gain (loss) before other revenues,

expenses, gains, or losses (34,307) (187) (17,745)
Other revenues, expenses, gains or losses 85,660 40,782 30,541

Increase (decrease) in net assets 51,353 40,595 12,796
Net assets at beginning of year 887.450 846,855 834,059
Net assets at end of year $ 938.803 $ 887.450 $ 846.855

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reflects an overall increase in
net assets of 5.8 percent, or $51.4 million. Revenue sources contributed positively to the increase
in net assets. These revenue sources include: capital appropriations and capital grants and
contracts revenue, tuition and fee revenue, and State of Alaska general fund appropriations.
However, net health care costs and salaries and employee benefits offset overall growth in net
assets.

e Net health care costs increased by $5.9 million to $50 million for fiscal year 2008.
e Salaries and employee benefits increased by $19.7 million for fiscal year 2008.

In 2008, the university recorded a $0.5 million net pension and OPEB expense (and related
liability) for the state-administered PERS defined benefit plan. This expense represents the
difference between contribution amounts based on actuarially determined rates and contributions
actually paid to PERS. The university made the contributions required by the PERS plan, and
these amounts were based on a capped rate that was 6.23 percentage points lower than the
actuarially computed rate. For further discussion on PERS, see the Other Economic and
Financial Conditions section which follows.

Capital appropriations and capital grant and contract revenue increased from $40.8 million in
2007 to $85.7 million in 2008. Revenue from capital sources is generally recognized as
expenditures occur. The State of Alaska appropriated capital funds totaling $107.9 million in
2007 and $12.9 million in 2008. For further discussion on capital activity, see the Capital and
Debt Activities section which follows.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Gross student tuition and fee revenue increased to $99.9 million in fiscal year 2008 as compared
to $91.5 million in fiscal year 2007. This was due in large part to a 7 percent increase in tuition
rates for students for academic year 2007 — 2008, and a $2.4 million increase in total fee revenue
from $16.4 million at June 30, 2007 to $18.8 million at June 30, 2008.

Endowment investments experienced a $4.6 million loss in 2008 as compared to a $22.3 million
gain, in the prior year. Total return was a negative 2.4 percent in 2008 as compared to a positive
17.9 percent in 2007.

Endowment gifts, sales and other proceeds totaled $5.6 million in fiscal year 2008 as compared to
$7.7 million in fiscal year 2007. The $2.1 million decline in revenue between fiscal year 2007
and fiscal year 2008 is due mostly to receipt of a $2.6 million pledge in fiscal year 2007. This
category also includes yield from, or sales of, trust land, timber and mineral interests, the net
proceeds of which are generally deposited to the land grant endowment trust fund.

State of Alaska general fund appropriations continue to be the single major source of revenue for
the university, providing $300 million in 2008, as compared to $287.4 million in 2007.
Historically, the Legislature has funded the university at an amount equal to or above the prior
period’s appropriation.

A comparison of operating and nonoperating revenues by source for fiscal year 2008, 2007 and
2006 follows:

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues (excluding capital) by Year

43.4%
42.2%

tat riations
State approp L 22

Government grants
and contracts

Tuition and fees, net

Private grants and o
BEFY2008 (total revenue = $690.5 million)
contracts
Auxiliary enterprises
ary P ? OFY2007 (total revenue = $68 1.4 million)
net
Other BFY2006 (total revenue = $620.0 million)
State on-behalf
pension payments



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

A comparison of operating expenses by functional and natural classification for selected fiscal
years follows (see Note 16 of the financial statements for more information):

Fiscal Year 2008
Functional Classification

Academic support

7% Public service 5%
0

Student aid 2%

Student services
6%
Research 17%

Operations and

Instruction 26% -
maintenance 8%

Institutional

NPO, OPEB, and support 11%

state on-behalf
pension expense
4%

Auxiliary
enterprises 6%

Depreciation 8%

Operating Expenses
Functional Classification (in millions)
FY2008 FY2007 FY2006

Instruction $183.2  25.6% $181.2  26.9% $163.5  25.9%
Student Services 45.4 6.3% 41.9 6.2% 38.5 6.1%
Student Aid 14.9 2.1% 13.5 2.0% 13.4 2.1%
Academic Support 52.2 7.3% 50.7 7.6% 44.6 7.1%
Student and Academic $295.7 41.3% $287.3  42.7% $260.0 41.2%
Public Service 36.1 5.0% 329 4.9% 32.1 51%
Research 121.8 17.0% 1313  19.5% 126.3  20.0%
Operations and Maintenance 55.0 7.7% 50.2 7.5% 442 7.0%
Institutional Support 82.6 11.5% 69.6 10.3% 61.8 9.8%
Auxiliary Enterprises 394 5.5% 38.7 5.8% 37.2 5.9%
NPO,OPEB, State On-Behalf 29.0 4.1% 54 0.8% 9.9 1.5%
Depreciation 56.9 7.9% 574 8.5% 59.8 9.5%
Total Operating Expenses $716.5 100.0% $672.8 100.0% $631.3 100.0%




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Student aid expense increased from $13.5 million in fiscal year 2007 to $14.9 million in fiscal
year 2008. Certain amounts applied to student accounts for tuition, fees, or room and board are
not reported as student aid expense, but are reported in the financial statements as a scholarship
allowance, directly offsetting student tuition and fee revenue or auxiliary revenue. Allowances
totaled $9.1 million in 2008 and $8.3 million in 2007. In addition to the allowances, students
participate in governmental financial aid loan programs. The loans are neither recorded as
revenue nor expense in the financial statements, but are recorded in the Statements of Cash Flows
as direct lending receipts totaling approximately $67.4 million and $64.8 million in fiscal year
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Net pension, OPEB and state on-behalf pension payments increased to $29 million in fiscal year
2008 as compared to $5.4 million in fiscal year 2007. This was primarily due to first-time state
on-behalf pension payments, totaling $28.5 million, paid directly to the PERS and TRS defined
benefit plans to reduce the PERS and TRS employers’ contributions for fiscal year 2008. The
pension payments were made on-behalf of the university and are presented as revenue and
expenses in the university’s financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 24,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance.

Research expenses decreased $9.5 million from $131.3 million at June 30, 2007 to $121.8 million
at June 30, 2008. The decreases in recent years reflects loss or reduction in congressionally
directed funding, plus stagnant competitive federal research budgets and lack of new state base
support for research.

Institutional support expenses fluctuate due to the accounting method used to record employee
benefits. The university employs a central benefits pool concept, and uses a staff benefit rate, to
charge estimated employee benefits, such as pension and healthcare costs, to labor recorded in the
various functional expense categories. Institutional support expenses are impacted when the
amounts charged exceed, or are less than, actual benefits paid to third parties. Over recovery or
under recovery of charges in one year are built into the rate building process the following year.
When considered in total, operating expenses across all functional categories include the correct
amount of employee benefit expense each fiscal year.

10
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(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Fiscal Year 2008
Natural Classification

18%

Salaries and Suppyes and
employee benefits materials 8%
60%

Other 4%

Student aid 2%

Depreciation 8%

Contractual services

Operating Expenses
Natural Classification (in millions)
FY2008 FY2007 FY2006
Salaries and Employee Benefits $426.7  59.6% $407.0 60.5% $370.3  58.6%
Contractual Services 1262 17.6% 1248  18.5% 119.7  19.0%
Supplies and Materials 59.8 8.3% 61.7 9.2% 56.2 8.9%
32.0 4.5% 83 1.2% 11.9 1.9%
Student Aid 14.9 2.1% 13.6 2.0% 13.4 2.1%
Depreciation 56.9 7.9% 574 8.6% 59.8 9.5%

$716.5 100.0% $672.8 100.0%

$631.3 100.0%

Salaries and employee benefits increased 4.8 percent, or $19.7 million, in fiscal year 2008.
Employee benefits, such as pension plan contributions and health care costs, increased 2.9 percent
and comprised $3.5 million of the change. Salaries and wages increased 5.7 percent, or $16.2
million. Other expenses increased by $23.7 million in fiscal year 2008 and are primarily
attributed to the State of Alaska PERS and TRS on-behalf pension payments.

Fiscal Year 2007 Comparisons (Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets)

Significant comments about changes between 2006 and 2007 that were noted in fiscal year 2007
Management’s Discussion and Analysis are summarized below:

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reflected an overall increase in
net assets of 4.8 percent or $40.6 million. Revenue sources contributed positively to the increase
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

in net assets. These revenue sources included: capital appropriations and capital grants and
contracts revenue, tuition and fee revenue, endowment investment income and other proceeds,
and State of Alaska general fund appropriations. However, increased costs in pension plans, net
health care costs, salaries and wages, and the PERS net pension and OPEB obligations offset
overall growth in net assets.

e PERS, TRS, and ORP costs increased by $12.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2007.
e Net health care costs increased by $9.9 million for fiscal year 2007.
e Salaries and wages increased by $14.3 million for fiscal year 2007.

e The PERS net pension and OPEB obligations increased by $5.4 million for the year
ended June 30, 2007.

The increase in revenue recognized from capital funding sources also contributed to increases in
net assets. Capital appropriations and capital grants and contracts revenue increased from $30.5
~ million in 2006 to $40.8 million in 2007.

Other major revenue sources included state general fund appropriations, tuition and fee revenue,
and endowment investment income. State general fund appropriations were $287.4 million in
2007, as compared to $252.5 million in 2006. Gross tuition and fee revenue increased to $91.5
million in fiscal year 2007 as compared to $85.3 million in fiscal year 2006. This was due in
large part to a 10 percent increase in tuition rates for students in academic year 2006 — 2007.
Student full-time equivalent enrollment for Fall 2006 was 17,541, a 0.8 percent increase from the
prior Fall period. Additionally, endowment investment income was approximately $22.3 million
in 2007 as compared to $13.9 million in 2006.

Capital and Debt Activities

The University of Alaska has continued to modernize various facilities and to build new facilities
to address emerging state needs. Net capital additions totaled $97.7 million in 2008, as compared
with $57.4 million in 2007 and $44.5 million in 2006. These capital additions primarily comprise
replacement, renovation, code corrections and new construction of academic and research
facilities, as well as investments in equipment and information technology. State capital
appropriations for 2008 and 2007 were $12.9 million and $107.9 million, respectively. At June
30, 2008, $88.8 million remains unexpended from current and prior year capital appropriations
and general revenue bond proceeds, of which $61.9 million is committed to existing construction
contracts. The balance is for projects still in design or preconstruction, or is held for
contingencies for work in progress.

Construction in progress at June 30, 2008 totaled $92.9 million and includes the following major
projects:

e University of Alaska Anchorage Integrated Science Building (ISB): This $91 million
facility will incorporate the existing science facility into expanded instructional, student,
and administrative space. Features include state of the art science academic labs and
technology associated with distance delivery. The facility is designed to incorporate
program growth in integrated sciences, including integrated science instruction for majors
and non-majors, environmental studies and systems research, biomedical research, and

12



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

complex system studies to prepare students to meet the employment needs of the state of
Alaska. The estimated occupancy date is fall 2009.

e University of Alaska Anchorage Parking Garage associated with the ISB, Loop Road and
Amenities Building: This $17.2 million structure will consist of a three level parking
garage for 445 vehicles, a loop road connecting ISB service entrance to the Fine Arts
building parking lot and a detached amenities/auxiliary building that will house the
elevator, stairs, mechanical and electrical support for the garage. The estimated
completion date is August 2009.

e University of Alaska Fairbanks School of Fisheries and Ocean Sciences (SFOS) Facility
at Lena Point in Juneau, Alaska: This $26.2 million facility will provide long-term
support for the SFOS’s academic and research mission. The facility will allow for
consolidation of classes, research facilities and faculty currently spread between two
locations.

State of Alaska capital appropriations for fiscal year 2009 total $107.2 million. The main
components of this appropriation include $15 million designated for a new UAA Sports Arena,
$46 million for the new UAA Health Sciences Building, $3 million for the UAF Tanana Valley
Campus Revitalization, and $42.8 million for maintaining existing facilities and equipment.

At June 30, 2008, total debt outstanding was $136.7 million, comprised of $110.1 million in
general revenue bonds, $24.6 million in notes payable, and $2 million in bank financing
contracts. In December 2007, Moody's Investors Service raised its previous university credit
rating of Al to Aa3 with stable outlook, and in January 2008, Standard & Poor’s affirmed its
rating of AA- with stable outlook. Moody’s Investors Service’s upgrade of the university’s credit
rating is the university’s first rating change since its general revenue issues were first rated in
1992.

The university issued Series O general revenue bonds totaling $23.8 million in fiscal year 2008.
The bonds mature annually each October 1, through 2033, and bear coupon interest rates ranging
from 3.375 percent to 4.25 percent. Series O bond proceeds are being used for capital projects.

In previous years, other bonds were issued to finance construction of student residences at three
campuses, the West Ridge Research Building, student recreation centers, a research facility to
house the International Arctic Research Center, the acquisition and renovation of several
properties adjacent to or near the university’s campuses, additions to the university’s self-
operated power, heat, water and telephone utility systems in Fairbanks, purchase of the University
Center Building in Anchorage, and to refund previously issued general revenue bonds and other
contractual obligations in order to realize debt service savings.

The university has traditionally utilized both tax exempt and non-tax exempt equipment lease
financings to provide for its capital needs or to facilitate systematic renewals. Short-term lines of
credit or working capital is available to provide interim cash flow financing for facilities intended
to be funded with general revenue bond proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Other Economic and Financial Conditions

The following is a description of currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected
to have a significant effect on the financial position (net assets) or results of operations (revenues,
expenses, and other changes in net assets) of the university.

At their September 2007 meeting, the Board of Regents approved a 5 percent increase in tuition
for the 2008 — 2009 and 2009 — 2010 academic years. At their September 2008 meeting, the
Board of Regents approved a 4 percent increase in tuition for 100 to 200 level courses and a 7
percent tuition increase for 300 to 400 level courses in the 2010 — 2011 academic year.

The rising cost of participation in the state-administered defined benefit PERS and TRS has been
a challenge for several years. Since fiscal year 2005, the university has accrued a total PERS net
pension and OPEB liability of $31.3 million and in addition to the university’s annual fiscal year
2008 employer contributions to PERS and TRS, the state contributed a combined $28.5 million in
on-behalf pension payments directly to both defined benefit plans. Continued employer relief has
been sought through recently enacted state legislation, Alaska Legislature Senate Bill 125 (SB
125), effective July 1, 2008. SB 125 converted PERS from an agent multiple-employer plan to a
cost-sharing plan, like the TRS, and provided for one integrated system of accounting for all
employers. SB 125 further amended AS 39.35.255 (PERS) and reenacted AS 14.25.070 (TRS) as
follows:

e The bill established one uniform rate for PERS employers at 22 percent for fiscal year
2009, with the state contributing the difference between total PERS actuarial required
contributions and the employer contribution rate. The Alaska Retirement and
Management Board (ARMB) fiscal year 2009 adopted rate for the actuarial required
contributions is 35.22 percent.

e The bill established the TRS employer contribution rate at 12.56 percent for fiscal year
2009, with the state contributing the difference between total TRS actuarial required
contributions and the employer contribution rate. The ARMB fiscal year 2009 adopted
rate for the actuarial required contributions is 44.17 percent.

With the enactment of SB125, it is expected the university will no longer have a net pension and
OPEB obligation reported on its Statement of Net Assets, effective July 1, 2008. In accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, net pension and OPEB obligations are not reported
by each employer in a cost-sharing pension plan when an employer contributes the contractually
required amounts.

For fiscal year 2009, state appropriations for operations and debt service reimbursement total
$321 million, a 7 percent increase over fiscal year 2008. The level of annual state appropriation
funding is conditional upon the legislative process, which is directly influenced by current
economic conditions and other factors. The university continues to seek additional revenues from
sources other than state appropriations.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, several major U.S. financial institutions and investment banks
experienced significant financial difficulties primarily as a result of the decline in value of risky
investments. The risky investments are often referred to as “sub-prime” mortgages. These entities
were either purchased by other entities, or were otherwise aided by federal funding in an effort to
keep them in business.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited — see accompanying accountants’ report)

Consequently, there has been significant unrest in the financial markets, decrease in stock values
and a substantial decrease in inter-bank lending and the extension of credit. At the time of this
writing, there remains uncertainty and instability in the financial markets. The university has
experienced a decline in the value of its investments subsequent to June 30, 2008. In addition, the
university experienced the closure of one of its cash management accounts on September 29,
2008 as further described in Note 2 of the financial statements. Management continues to
monitor these events, and at this time, does not anticipate any significant disruption to its
activities, functions and operations.
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
(A Component Unit of the State of Alaska)
Statements of Net Assets
June 30, 2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

Assets 2008 2007
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,642 (524)
Short-term investments 26,463 39,317
Accounts receivable, less allowance
of $5,239 in 2008 and $4,678 in 2007 61,858 53,646
Other assets 774 684
Inventories 8,110 8,544
Total current assets 105,847 101,667
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,692 4,092
Notes receivable 4,583 5,329
Endowment investments 145,212 148,713
Land Grant Trust property and other assets 45,001 46,272
Long-term investments 83,922 83,503
Education Trust of Alaska 8,569 8,324
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
of $681,520 in 2008 and $634,883 in 2007 792,161 736,894
Total noncurrent assets 1,099,140 1,033,127
Total assets 1,204,987 1,134,794
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 13,582 10,800
Accrued expenses 5,215 9,476
Accrued payroll 21,292 20,852
Deferred revenue 4974 4303
Accrued annual leave 10,459 9,926
Deferred lease revenue - current portion 1,281 1,281
Long-term debt - current portion 9,659 6,278
Insurance and risk management 19,283 18,168
Deposits from students and others 3,149 3,337
Total current liabilities 88,894 84,421
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital appropriation advances 5,464 6,313
Deferred lease revenue 6,085 7,366
Long-term debt 127,019 112,732
Net pension and OPEB obligations 31,325 30,786
Security deposits and other liabilities 7,397 5,726
Total noncurrent liabilities 177,290 162,923
Total liabilities 266,184 247 344
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 671,700 619,665
Restricted:
Expendable:
Restricted funds 519 881
Student loan funds 271 270
Education Trust of Alaska 5,173 6,413
Capital projects 2,992 1,678
Debt service 4311 3,528
Endowment 60,590 69,966
Nonexpendable
Endowment 94,571 89,949
Land Grant Trust 32,181 34,165
Unrestricted (see Note 7) 66,495 60,935
Total net assets $ 938,803 887,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA FOUNDATION
(A Component Unit of the University of Alaska)

Statements of Financial Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Short-term investments
Contributions receivable
Escrows receivable
Inventory

Other assets

Pooled endowment funds
Other long-term investments

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to the University of Alaska
Other liabilities

Remainder trust obligations
Term endowment liability

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

June 30, 2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

2008 2007
904 $ 3,593
110 57

6,668 9,339
16,548 6,640
155 189
77 77
425 425
116,221 119,528
38,172 29,365
179280  $§ 169213
2,033 $ 1,920
15 -
328 332
1,000 1,000
3,376 3,252
41,379 43,757
81,280 71,759
53,245 50,445
175,904 165,961
179280  $ 169,213
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
(A Component Unit of the State of Alaska)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

2008 2007
Operating revenues
Student tuition and fees $ 99,921 $ 91,473
less scholarship allowances (7,838) (7,004)
92,083 84,469
Federal grants and contracts 136,497 139,361
State grants and contracts 17,885 15,605
Local grants and contracts 3,472 3,214
Private grants and contracts 45,985 47,859
Federal appropriations 2,991 3,811
Local appropriations 717 717
Sales and services, educational departments 3,345 3,688
Sales and services, auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances
of $1,264 in 2008 and $1,246 in 2007 39,192 38,849
Other 14,457 14,837
Total operating revenues 356,624 352,410
Operating expenses
Instruction 183,190 181,175
Academic support 52,174 50,659
Research 121,843 131,283
Public service 36,063 32,926
Student services 45,437 41,890
Operations and maintenance 54,983 50,216
Institutional support 82,611 69,562
Student aid 14,879 13,566
Auxiliary enterprises 39,410 38,681
Depreciation i 56,883 57,455
Pension expense - NPO, OPEB and state on-behalf payments 29,003 5,389
Total operating expenses 716,476 672,802
Operating loss (359,852) (320,392)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
State appropriations 300,027 287,414
State on-behalf contributions - pension 28,464 -
Investment earnings 4,408 11,656
Endowment investment income (loss) (4,595) 22,254
Endowment gifts, sales and other proceeds 5,559 7,710
Interest on debt (4,895) (4,295)
Other nonoperating expenses (3,423) (4,534)
Net nonoperating revenues 325,545 320,205
Loss before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses (34,307) (187)
Capital appropriations, grants and contracts 85,660 40,782
Net increase in net assets 51,353 40,595
Net assets
Net assets - beginning of year 887,450 846,855
Net assets - end of year $ 938,803 $ 887,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 21
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA FOUNDATION
(A Component Unit of the University of Alaska)

Statements of Activities

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

Revenues, gains and other support

Contributions

Investment income

Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses)
Other revenues

Actuarial adjustment of remainder trust obligations
Losses on disposition of other assets

Administrative assessments

Support from University of Alaska

Net assets released from restriction

Total revenues, gains and other support

Expenses and distributions

Operating expenses

Distributions for the benefit of the University of Alaska

Total expenses and distributions

Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses

Transfers between net asset classes
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2008
$ 857 $ 25652 $ 2,622 29,131
1,889 1,494 - 3,383
(1,797) (4,405) - (6,202)
1 97 - 98
- (6) @) (13)
- (115) - (115)
1,214 (981) (18) 215
858 - - 858
12,023 (12,023) - -
15,045 9,713 2,597 27,355
1,983 - - 1,983
15,429 - - 15,429
17,412 - - 17,412
(2,367) 9,713 2,597 9,943
(11) (192) 203 -
(2,378) 9,521 2,800 9,943
43,757 71,759 50,445 165,961
$ 41,379 $ 81,280 $ 53245 175,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2007
4150 $ 13,033 § 2850 $ 20,033
1,833 1,915 - 3,748
4512 12,671 - 17,183

1 125 - 126

- 2) @] )]

_ (83) - (83)
340 (131) a7n 192
830 - - 830
11,744 (11,744) - R
23,410 15,784 2,826 42,020
1,620 - - 1,620
15,511 - - 15,511
17,131 - - 17,131
6,279 15,784 2,826 24,889
249 (237) (12) -
6,528 15,547 2,814 24,889
37,229 56,212 47,631 141,072
43757 % 71,759 % 50,445 % 165,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
(A Component Unit of the State of Alaska)
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30,2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Student tuition and fees, net $ 90,481 $ 84,566
Grants and contracts 202,720 199,562
Sales and services, educational departments 3,345 3,688
Sales and services, auxiliary enterprises 39,101 39,124
Federal appropriations 2,991 3,811
Local appropriations 717 717
Other operating receipts 13,176 13,556
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (424,880) (406,846)
Payments to suppliers (193,640) (186,785)
Payments to students for financial aid (14,889) (13,567)
Net cash used by operating activities (280,878) (262,174)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State appropriations 300,027 287,290
Other payments (1,085) 92
Direct lending receipts 67,427 64,771
Direct lending payments (67,334) (64,901)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 299,035 287,252
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital appropriations, grants and contracts 78,903 40,631
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt 23.795 -
Purchases of capital assets (109,026) (65,233)
Principal paid on capital debt (6,280) (5,272)
Interest paid on capital debt (4,843) 4,577)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (17,451) (34,451)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 472,790 403,506
Purchases of investments (465,825) (412,344)
Interest received on investments 5,802 6,566
Interest and other sales receipts from endowment assets 11,293 7,464
Net cash provided by investing activities 24,060 5,192
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24,766 (4,181)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 3,568 7,749
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year $ 28,334 $ 3,568
Cash and cash equivalents (current) $ 8,642 $ (524)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (noncurrent) 19,692 4,092
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 28334 $ 3,568

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
(A Component Unit of the State of Alaska)
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
(in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by

operating activities: 2008 2007
Operating loss $ (359,852) $§ (320,392)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:

Depreciation expense 56,883 57,455
State on-behalf payments 28,464 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (3,300) (6,069)
Other assets (90) 395
Inventories 434 499
Accounts payable (565) (1,152)
Accrued expenses (4,675) 5,329
Accrued payroll 440 (1,459)
Deferred revenue 671 (262)
Accrued annual leave 533 749
Deferred lease revenue - current portion (1,281) (1,281)
Insurance and risk management 1,115 (1,601)
Deposits from students and others (194) 226
Net pension and OPEB obligations 539 5,389
Net cash used by operating activities $ (280,878) § (262,174)

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Additions to capital assets include $0.9 million expended and capitalized but not paid for at year end.
The university financed the purchase of equipment totaling $0.2 million.
Book value of capital asset disposals totaled $0.7 million.

The university received on-behalf pension payments from the state of Alaska totaling $28.5 million.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Additions to capital assets include $0.6 million expended and capitalized but not paid for at year end.
The university financed the purchase of equipment totaling $1.2 million.
Book value of capital asset disposals totaled $4.6 million.

Interest expense on general revenue bond financed projects totaling $0.2 million was capitalized
during the year.

Endowment assets increased $0.1 million through receipt of donated real property.

Endowment investment real property was purchased in part through issuance of a note totaling
$4.6 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 25
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008 and 2007
Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Organization and Basis of Presentation:

The University of Alaska (university) is a constitutionally created corporation of the State of Alaska
which is authorized to hold title to real and personal property and to issue debt in its own name. The
university is a component unit of the State of Alaska for purposes of financial reporting. As an
instrumentality of the State of Alaska, the university is exempt from federal income tax under Internal
Revenue Code Section 115, except for unrelated business activities as covered under Internal Revenue
Code Sections 511 to 514.

The University of Alaska Foundation (foundation) is a legally separate, non profit component unit of
the university. The foundation was established to solicit donations and to hold and manage such assets
for the exclusive benefit of the university. Resources managed by the foundation and distributions
made to the university are governed by the foundation’s Board of Trustees. Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units, required the university to include the foundation as part of its financial statements to
better report resources benefiting the university. The university is not accountable for, nor has
ownership of, the foundation’s resources. The foundation’s financial statements include the Statement
of Financial Position and the Statement of Activities and these statements are presented in their
original audited format according to Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
statement of net assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The more significant
accounting and reporting policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the accompanying
financial statements are discussed below.

GASB Statement No. 35 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and
universities and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the
following net asset categories:

o Unrestricted Net Assets: Assets, net of related liabilities, which are not subject to externally-
imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by the
Board of Regents or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

e Restricted Net Assets:

Expendable — Assets, net of related liabilities, which are subject to externally-imposed
restrictions that may or will be met by actions of the university and/or that expire with the
passage of time.

Non-expendable — Assets, net of related liabilities, which are subject to externally-
imposed restrictions requiring that they be maintained permanently by the university.

e Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All significant intra-university transactions have been
eliminated. The university reports as a business type activity, as defined by GASB Statement No. 35.
Business type activities are those that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services.

The university has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB. The university
has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after the applicable date.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments, not held for long-term investment, with original maturities of three
months or less are reported as cash and cash equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Investments in fixed income and equity marketable securities are
stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. Investments in private partnership interests are
valued using the most current information provided by the general partner. General partners typically
value privately held companies at cost as adjusted based on recent arms’ length transactions. Public
companies are valued using quoted market prices and exchange rates, if applicable. Real estate
partnerships and funds are valued based on appraisals of properties held and conducted by third-party
appraisers retained by the general partner or investment manager. General partners of marketable
alternatives provide values based on quoted market prices and exchange rates for publicly held
securities and valuation estimates of derivative instruments. General partners of oil and gas
partnerships use third-party appraisers to value properties. Valuations provided by the general partners
and investment managers are evaluated by management and management believes such values are
reasonable at June 30, 2008. When, in the opinion of management, there has been a permanent
impairment in the asset value, the asset is written down to its fair value. Income from other
investments is recognized when received.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of net assets. Investments also include
securities with contractual cash flows such as asset-backed securities, collateralized mortgage
obligations and commercial mortgage-backed securities. The value, liquidity and related income of
these securities are sensitive to economic conditions, including real estate value, delinquencies or
defaults, or both, and may be adversely affected by shifts in the market’s perception of the issuers and
changes in interest rates. Long-term investments include those restricted by outside parties as to
withdrawal or use for other than current operations, or are designated for expenditure in the acquisition
or construction of noncurrent assets or held with an intent not to be used for operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost when purchased and at fair value when donated. Equipment with a unit
value of $5,000 or greater is capitalized. Buildings and infrastructure with a unit value of $100,000 or
greater are capitalized. Other capitalizable assets with a unit value of $50,000 or greater are capitalized.
Certain land and other resources acquired through land grants and donated museum collections for
which fair value at date of acquisition was not determinable are reported at zero basis in the financial
statements.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis with useful lives of building and building components
ranging from 12 to 50 years, 10 to 35 years for infrastructure and other improvements, and 5 to 11
years for equipment. Library and museum collections are not depreciated because they are preserved
and cared for and have an extraordinarily long useful life.

Endowments

Endowments consist primarily of the land grant endowment trust fund established pursuant to the 1929
federal land grant legislation and its related inflation proofing funds. Alaska Statute 14.40.400
provides that the net income from the sale or use of grant lands must be held in trust in perpetuity. At
June 30, 2008 and 2007 the accumulated net earnings and appreciation on investments is $60.7 million
and $70 million, respectively. These amounts, which are recorded in the restricted expendable net
asset category, are available for expenditure in accordance with spending policies established by the
Board of Regents in its capacity as trustee. Alaska Statute 14.40.400 provides the Board of Regents
with authority to manage the fund under the total return principles which are intended to preserve and
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment principal. The investable resources of the fund are
invested in the consolidated endowment fund, a unitized investment fund. The annual spending
allowance is currently based on five percent of a five-year moving average of the invested balance.
Withdrawals of net earnings appreciation to meet the spending allowance are limited to the
unexpended accumulated net earnings of the endowments.

Operating Activities

The university’s policy for defining operating activities as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as
payments received for providing services and payments made for services or goods received. Certain
significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as non-operating revenues, as
defined by GASB Statement No. 35, including state appropriations and investment earnings.

Scholarship Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues and certain other revenues from students are reported net of
scholarship allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. Scholarship
allowances are the difference between the stated charge for tuition and room and board provided by the
university and the amount paid by the student and/or third parties making payments on the students’
behalf.

Lapse of State Appropriations

Alaska Statutes provide that unexpended balances of one-year appropriations will lapse on June 30 of
the fiscal year of the appropriation; however, university receipts in excess of expenditures may be
expended by the university in the next fiscal year. University receipts include student tuition and fees,
donations, sales, rentals, facilities and administrative cost recovery, interest income, auxiliary and
restricted revenues. The unexpended balances of capital appropriations lapse upon completion of the
project or upon determination that the funds are no longer necessary for the project.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2007 financial statements have been reclassified for comparative
purposes to conform to the presentation in the June 30, 2008 financial statements.

Deposits and Investments:

Deposits and investments at June 30, 2008 were as follows ($ in thousands):

College
Capital Savings
Investment Type Operating Funds Endowment Program Total

Cash and Deposits $ (4,010) $ -5 - 3 - $ 4,010
Repurchase Agreement 15,743 - - - 15,743
Short Term Fund 21,696 898 6,815 - 29,409
Intermediate Term Fund 5,429 - 98 - 5,527
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 27,380 - 8,834 - 36,214
Hedge Funds 47,647 - 27,325 - 74,972
Money Market Mutual Funds - 23,060 6 405 23,471
Equities:

Domestic - - 46,586 3,323 49,909

International - - 14,861 - 14,861

Global - - 7,809 - 7,809

Emerging Markets - - 3,886 - 3,886
Debt-related:

Federal Agency - 876 - - 876

Fixed Income Funds - - 9,198 4,841 14,039
Alternative Investments:

Commodities - - 2,820 - 2,820

Natural Resources - - 3,835 - 3,835

Venture Capital - - 1,314 - 1,314

Mezzanine - - 1,672 - 1,672
Real Estate - - 7,069 - 7,069
Other - - 3,084 - 3,084

$ 113,885 $ 24834 § 145212 § 8,569  $292,500
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Deposits and investments at June 30, 2007 were as follows ($ in thousands):

College
Capital Savings
Investment Type Operating Funds Endowment Program Total

Cash and Deposits $ (5,266) $ - § - 3 - $ (5260)
Repurchase Agreement 6,333 - - - 6,333
Short Term Fund 18,613 3,786 5,762 - 28,161
Intermediate Term Fund 20,704 - 548 - 21,252
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 33,184 - 8,322 - 41,506
Balanced Portfolio - - - 31 31
Hedge Funds 41,490 - 23,743 - 65,233
Money Market Mutual Funds - 566 184 422 1,172
Equities:

Domestic - - 54,076 3,357 57,433

International - - 18,482 - 18,482

Global - - 4,604 - 4,604

Emerging Markets - - 4,938 - 4,938
Debt-related:

Federal Agency - 854 - - 854

U.S. Treasury Securities - 3,948 - - 3,948

Fixed Income Funds - - 10,501 4,514 15,015

Commercial Paper - 2,176 - - 2,176
Alternative Investments:

Commodities - - 1,993 - 1,993

Natural Resources - - 2,480 - 2,480

Venture Capital - - 964 - 964

Mezzanine - - 1,328 - 1,328
Real Estate - - 6,906 - 6,906
Other - - 3,882 - 3,882

$ 115,058 $ 11,330 $148,713 § 8324 §$283425

Operating funds consist of cash on hand, time deposits, an overnight repurchase agreement and
investments in Commonfund pooled investment funds. Alaska Statutes and Board of Regents’ policy
provide the university with broad authority to invest funds. Generally, operating funds are invested
according to the university’s liquidity needs. The Commonfund is a not-for-profit provider of pooled
multi-manager investment vehicles for colleges and universities. The university invests in a variety of
these funds according to its investment objectives.

Within the operating funds, the university uses the Commonfund Short Term Fund for regular cash
management activities and liquidity. In prior years, the Short Term Fund had been classified as a cash
and cash equivalent. However, $18.6 million in the Short Term Fund that had been previously
classified as a cash and cash equivalent in the June 30, 2007 financial statements, has been classified as
a short-term investment for operating purposes in these financial statements. For further discussion,
see the Subsequent Events section which follows.
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Capital funds include unexpended general revenue bond proceeds and related reserves, advances from
state capital appropriations and other reserves designated for capital purposes. General revenue bond
proceeds of $19.6 million and related reserves totaling $4.3 million are invested with a third party
trustee in accordance with terms of a trust indenture, requiring purchase of investment securities that
are investment grade.

Endowment funds primarily consist of $143.1 million in investable resources of the university’s land
grant endowment trust fund and are invested in a consolidated endowment fund (fund) managed by the
University of Alaska Foundation (foundation). These resources are combined with the foundation’s
pooled endowment funds for investment purposes, and managed by the foundation’s investment
committee and treasurer on a total return basis in accordance with an investment policy approved by
the Board of Regents.

College savings program investments include the operating funds of the Education Trust of Alaska,
established pursuant to state statute by the Board of Regents to facilitate administration of the state’s
Internal Revenue Code Section 529 College Savings Program. Program investments are in mutual
funds of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., the program manager. See Note 4 for further information.

Certain funds held in trust for the benefit of the university are not included in the financial statements
as the university has only limited control over their administration. These funds are in the custody of
independent fiduciaries and at June 30, 2008 had an estimated fair value of approximately $5.1 million.

At June 30, 2008, the university has approximately $100.8 million in investments which are not readily
marketable. Approximately $53.2 million is invested in the consolidated endowment fund managed by
the foundation and $47.6 million is invested in hedge funds within the university’s operating funds.
These investments represent 34.5 percent of total deposits and investments and 10.7 percent of net
assets at June 30, 2008. These investment instruments may contain elements of both credit and market
risk. Such risks include, but are not limited to, limited liquidity, absence of regulatory oversight,
dependence upon key individuals, and nondisclosure of portfolio composition. Because these
investments are not readily marketable, their estimated value is subject to uncertainty and therefore
may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for such investments existed.
Such difference could be material.

Disclosures for deposits and investments are presented according to GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit
and Investment Risk Disclosures (GASB 40). Accordingly, the following information addresses
various risk categories for university deposits and investments and the investment policies for
managing that risk.
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Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The university does not have a policy regarding credit risk since it does not normally
invest its operating and capital funds in individual debt securities. The consolidated endowment fund
investment policy requires all purchases of debt securities to be of investment grade and marketable at
the time of purchase unless otherwise approved by the foundation’s investment committee. At June 30,
2008, investments consisted of securities with credit quality ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations as follows ($ in thousands):

College
Capital Savings
Investment Type Rating Operating Funds Endowment Program
Money Market Mutual Fund Aaa - $ 23,060 - -
Money Market Mutual Funds ~ Not Rated - - 8 6 § 405
Short Term Fund AAA $ 21,696 $ 898 $ 6,815 -
Intermediate Term Fund AA+ $ 5,429 - 3 98 -
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund AA $ 27,380 - $ 8,834 -
Hedge Funds Not Rated  $ 47,647 - $ 27,325 -
Debt-related:
Federal Agency AAA - $ 876 - -
Fixed Income Funds Baa2 - - S 276 -
Fixed Income Funds Not Rated - - $ 8922 $ 4,841

Concentration of Credit Risk:

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the university’s investment
in a single issuer. GASB 40 requires disclosure when the amount invested with a single issuer, by
investment type, exceeds five percent or more of that investment type. At June 30, 2008, the university
did not have any material concentrations of credit risk.

The consolidated endowment fund investment policy limits debt investments to five percent by issuer
(except for mutual and pooled funds and U.S. government and agencies) for each specific managed
portfolio within the consolidated endowment fund unless approved by the treasurer. The university
does not have a policy regarding concentration of credit risk since it does not normally invest its
operating and capital funds in individual debt investments.
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Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The university uses the modified duration measurement to evaluate interest rate risk.
Modified duration measures a debt investment’s exposure to fair value changes arising from changing
interest rates. For example, a modified duration of 2 means that for a rise in interest rates of one
percent, the value of the security would decrease two percent. The university does not have a policy
regarding interest rate risk. At June 30, 2008, the university had the following debt investments and
corresponding modified duration ($ in thousands):

Fair Value
College

Capital Savings Modified

Investment Type Operating Funds Endowment Program Duration
Short Term Fund $ 21,6906 $ 898 $ 6,815 - 3.10
Intermediate Term Fund $ 5429 - $ 98 - 1.90
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund $ 27,380 - $ 8,834 - 4.80
Federal Agency - $§ 876 - - 1.82
Fixed Income Fund - - - $ 4,841 4.66
Fixed Income Fund - - $ 8,922 - 4.68

Collateralized Loan

Obligation - - $ 276 - 5.42

Hedge funds totaling $75 million are exposed to interest rate risk, however, underlying fund data is not
available to measure the interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk:

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
institution, the university will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in
the event of failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the university will not be able to recover the
value of investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.

At June 30, 2008, the university does not have custodial credit risk. Deposits of the university are
covered by Federal Depository Insurance or securities pledged by the university’s counterparty to its
repurchase agreement held at the Bank of New York. The collateral is held in the name of the
university and at June 30, 2008, provided $5.2 million coverage in excess of deposits.

Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates could have an adverse affect on an
investment’s value for investments denominated in foreign currencies. GASB 40 requires disclosure of
value in U.S. dollars by foreign currency denomination and investment type. The university does not
have a policy regarding foreign currency risk. At June 30, 2008, the university did not have any
foreign currency risk.
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Subsequent Events:

Effective September 29, 2008, Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Trustee of the Commonfund for Short Term
Investments (the “Short Term Fund”) announced its decision to terminate and liquidate the Short Term
Fund. No additional contributions to the Short Term Fund will be accepted. Under the liquidation
plan, investors in the Short Term Fund will be allowed to withdraw balances based on their
proportional interest in the Short Term Fund as assets mature or are sold.

The university’s balance in the Short Term Fund was $29.4 million and $46.3 million as of June 30,
2008 and October 29, 2008, respectively. As of October 29, 2008, approximately 16.2 percent of Short
Term Fund assets were available for withdrawal. The value of the liquidation proceeds received by the
university is not expected to vary significantly from the fair value carried on the fund’s books based on
the current net asset value of the Short Term Fund. However, the realization of this value will depend
upon market conditions including the liquidity of the Short Term Fund’s assets during the liquidation
period. The university is not anticipating any adverse effects on its available working capital.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, the fair value of the university’s investments had declined due to
deterioration in market conditions. Further deterioration in the markets could more likely than not
result in further declines.

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2008 and 2007 ($ in thousands):

June 30, 2008 Gross Allowance Net
Student tuition and fees $ 11,857 $ (3,748) $ 8,109
Sponsored programs 42,176 (1,414) 40,762
Auxiliary services and other operating activities 510 77) 433
Capital appropriations, grants and contracts 12,554 - 12.554
$ 67.097 $ (5.239) $ 61,858
June 30, 2007 Gross Allowance Net
Student tuition and fees $ 9,846 $ (2,888) $ 6,958
Sponsored programs 40,330 (1,699) 38,631
Pledge receivable 1,100 - 1,100
Auxiliary services and other operating activities 401 1 310
Capital appropriations, grants and contracts 6,647 - 6,647

$ 58.324 $ (4.678) $ 53,646

Education Trust of Alaska:

Assets held in trust include operating funds of the Education Trust of Alaska (Trust). The Trust was
established pursuant to state statute on April 20, 2001 by the Board of Regents to facilitate
administration of the state’s Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 529 College Savings Program. The
program is a nationally marketed college savings program developed in accordance with IRC Section
529 and includes the resources of the university’s former Advance College Tuition (ACT) Program.
Participant account balances of approximately $3.2 billion and $3.1 billion at June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, are not included in the financial statements. Separately audited Trust financial statements
are available upon request from the University of Alaska Controller’s office.
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Assets of the Trust are invested in various mutual funds at the direction of T. Rowe Price Associates,
Inc., the program manager. The net assets of the Trust, which include a reserve for University of
Alaska (UA) Tuition Value Guarantees, are available for payment of program administrative costs,
benefits and other purposes of the Trust. Based on actuarial studies, management estimates reserve
requirements for the UA Tuition Value Guarantees to be approximately $3.5 million and $1.9 million
at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Land Grant Trust Property and Other Assets:

Land Grant Trust property and other assets consist of real property and timber and other rights. By
Acts of Congress in 1915 and 1929, approximately 110,000 acres of land was granted to the territory of
Alaska to be held in trust for the benefit of the university. The lands were managed by the territory,
and later the state of Alaska. In accordance with a 1982 agreement, the lands were subsequently
transferred to the Board of Regents, as trustee. In 1982 and 1988 certain state lands including timber
and other rights were transferred to the trust as replacement for lands disposed of or adversely affected
during the period of administration by the territory and the state. These lands and property interests
were recorded at their fair value as of the date of transfer. The net proceeds from timber, land and
other rights are deposited in the land grant endowment trust fund as described in the Endowment
section in Note 1 above. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, approximately 108,614 and 83,200 acres,
respectively, were held in trust at no basis because fair value at the date of transfer was not
determinable.

On October 23, 2005 House Bill 130, granting to the University of Alaska approximately 250,000 acres
of state land, passed into law. The intent of the Legislature is to provide the university with an
equitable land grant as originally envisioned in the federal land grant of 1915 and to provide the
university ownership of a significant portfolio of income producing land to help fund public higher
education in the state of Alaska. Because of restrictions in the legislation related to native allotments,
municipal entitlements and the University Research Forest, and delays in the conveyance of two
parcels from the federal government to the state of Alaska, only 49 parcels, totaling approximately
198,900 acres, are eligible for immediate conveyance to the university. As of June 30, 2008, the state
of Alaska has conveyed 25,902 acres of the state grant lands to the university. Net proceeds and
royalties received from property development will be deposited into the land grant endowment trust
fund. The lands will be recorded at zero basis when no determinable fair value is available at the time
of transfer. The legislation has been challenged and management does not believe the outcome will
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Capital Assets:

A summary of capital assets follows ($ in thousands):

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Library and museum collections
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other improvements

Total
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Library and museum collections
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other improvements

Total
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets, net

Balance Additions/ Balance
July 1,2007 Transfers Reductions June 30,2008
$ 27969 § 145  $ 31 $ 28,083

28,188 97,733 33,003 92,918
54,976 1,128 - 56,104
981,143 31,608 32 1,012,719
54,726 141 - 54,867
177,383 14,234 11,042 180,575
25,851 781 - 26,632
21.541 242 - 21.783
1,371,777 146,012 44,108 1,473,681
455,474 38,151 32 493,593
27,032 1,578 - 28,610
131,018 14,997 10,214 135,801
5,835 1,336 - 7,171
15,524 821 - 16,345
634.883 56,883 10,246 681,520
$ 736,894 $ 89,129 $ 33,862 $ 792,161

Balance Additions/ Balance
July 1. 2006 Transfers Reductions June 30, 2007
$ 27,129 $ 850 $ 10 $ 27,969

38,722 57,362 67,896 28,188
53,353 1,623 - 54,976
920,885 60,476 218 981,143
49,986 4,740 - 54,726
189,929 11,025 23,571 177,383
25,707 144 - 25,851
20,928 613 - 21.541
1,326,639 136,833 91,695 1,371,777
417,425 38,235 186 455,474
25,332 1,700 - 27,032
133,646 15,387 18,015 131,018
4,563 1,272 - 5,835
14.663 861 - 15.524
595,629 57.455 18.201 634,883
$ 731010 $ 79378 $ 73494 $ 736.894
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Unrestricted Net Assets:
At June 30, unrestricted net assets included the following ($ in thousands):
2008 2007
Designated:
Auxiliaries $ 6,394 $ 9,053
Working capital fund 4,715 4,715
Working capital advances (955) (2,302)
Service centers 9,705 9,158
Debt service funds 1,494 1,404
Renewal and replacement funds 7,498 6,360
Quasi-endowment funds 79 79
Net pension and OPEB obligations (31,325) (30,786)
Employee benefit funds 9,537 6,987
Endowment earnings 12,346 11,296
Encumbrances 10,307 12.256
Total designated 29,795 28,220
Undesignated 36,700 32,715
Total unrestricted net assets $ 66,495 $ 60,935

Unrestricted net assets include non-lapsing university receipts of $56.7 million at June 30, 2008. Non-
lapsing university receipts of $54.1 million from 2007 were fully expended in 2008.

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, $31.8 million and $32.4 million, respectively, of auxiliary funds,
encumbrances and other unrestricted net assets were pledged as collateral for the university's general
revenue bonds, as calculated under the terms of the 1992 General Revenue Bonds Trust Indenture.

Long-term Debt:

Debt service requirements at June 30, 2008 were as follows ($ in thousands):

Year ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 9,659 $ 5,469 $ 15,128
2010 6,280 4,955 11,235
2011 6,469 4,733 11,202
2012 6,685 4,501 11,186
2013 6,916 4,258 11,174
2014-2018 34,935 17,486 52,421
2019-2023 33,913 10,659 44,572
2024-2028 22,376 4510 26,886
2029-2033 7,775 1,056 8,831
2034-2036 1,670 76 1,746

$ 136,678 $ 57,703 $ 194381
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Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2008 and 2007 ($ in thousands):

2008 2007
Revenue bonds payable 1.40% to 5.45% general revenue
bonds due serially to 2036, secured by a pledge of
unrestricted current fund revenue generated from tuition,
fees, recovery of facilities and administrative costs, sales
and services of educational departments, miscellaneous
receipts and auxiliaries. $ 110,120 $ 90,280
Note payable — capital construction 1.826% assisted note
to the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) to
finance construction of Anchorage campus housing, due
semiannually through February 2024. ' 20,732 21,838
Note payable — real property purchase 8.00% note for
purchase of Bunnell Park property adjacent to the
University of Alaska Fairbanks campus. The note was
fully paid off in September 2008. 3,852 4,646
Equipment financings 3.52% to 4.77% notes for the
purchase of equipment and vehicles due in quarterly
installments through June 2017. 1.974 2.246
$ 136,678 $ 119,010

On January 31, 2008, the university issued Series O general revenue bonds totaling $23,795,000. The
bonds mature annually each October 1, through 2033 and bear coupon interest rates ranging from 3.375
percent to 4.25 percent. Series O bond proceeds are being used for capital improvement projects.

In fiscal year 2008, the state reimbursed the university $1,411,900 for debt service on Series K general
revenue bonds. Subject to annual appropriation, the state will reimburse the university for principal
and interest on $18,205,000 of the remaining bond principal. Annual debt service on this portion of the
bonds is approximately $1.4 million.

Under the terms of the 1992 General Revenue Bonds Trust Indenture, the university is required to
maintain a reserve account with a trustee at an amount equal to one-half of the maximum annual
general revenue bond debt service. The balance in the reserve account at June 30, 2008 and 2007 was
$4.9 million and $4.2 million, respectively. The reserve balance at June 30, 2008 includes a reserve
fund policy, purchased with the issuance of Series L, totaling $0.6 million.

In fiscal year 2006, the university defeased certain maturities of Series G general revenue bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments
on the old bonds. Trust assets and related liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the
university’s financial statements. Outstanding defeased bonds were $7.9 million for the year ended
June 30, 2007. At June 30, 2008, outstanding defeased bonds were fully paid.



10.

11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred Lease Revenue:

In fiscal year 1997, the university entered into an agreement to construct a facility and establish the
International Arctic Research Center (IARC). The university received $19,215,000 through a Japanese
non-profit corporation to support the construction of the IARC in exchange for a commitment to
provide research facilities to various Japanese research organizations and agencies for a period of 25
years, including lease extensions. The Japanese research organizations began occupying the IARC in
fiscal year 1999. The deferred lease revenue at June 30, 2008 is $7,365,750 and is reduced at the rate
of $1,281,000 per year with a corresponding increase to other operating revenue.

Long-term Liabilities:

Long-term liability activity was as follows ($ in thousands):

Amounts
Balance Balance  due within
July 1, 2007 Additions Reductions June 30, 2008 one year
Capital appropriation advances $ 6313 $§ 1,903 §$ 2,752 $ 5464 §$ -
Deferred lease revenue 8,647 - 1,281 7,366 1,281
Long-term debt 119,010 23,948 6,280 136,678 9,659
Net pension and OPEB obligations 30,786 539 - 31,325 -
Security deposits and other liabilities 5,726 1,671 - 7.397 -
$170482 $28.061 $10.313 $188.230 $10.940
Amounts
Balance Balance  due within
July 1, 2006 Additions Reductions June 30,2007 one year
Capital appropriation advances $ 8116 $ 1,562 $ 3,365 $ 6313 $ -
Deferred lease revenue 9,928 - 1,281 8,047 1,281
Long-term debt 118,383 5,899 5,272 119,010 6,278
Net pension and OPEB obligations 25,397 5,389 - 30,786 -
Security deposits and other liabilities 6,387 25 686 5,726 -

$168211 $12.875 §$10,604 $170482 § 7.559

Capital Appropriations and Construction Commitments:

Major construction projects of the university are funded primarily by state of Alaska appropriations
and university revenue bonds. The appropriations are financed through state-issued general obligation
bonds or capital project bonds issued by the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation, a component unit of
the state of Alaska, while other appropriations are received directly from the state or state agencies.

Unexpended and unbilled capital funds appropriated by the state of Alaska in prior years, which are not
reflected as appropriation revenue or receivables on the university’s books at June 30, 2008, totaled
$70.5 million. In addition, unexpended proceeds of university-issued general revenue bonds
designated for construction projects totaled $18.3 million at June 30, 2008.

Construction commitments at June 30, 2008 aggregated $61.9 million. At June 30, 2008, the university
had received $5.5 million from State of Alaska capital appropriations and other sources in advance of
expenditures.
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Pension Plans:

Substantially all regular employees hired before July 1, 2006 participate in one of the following
pension plans:

e The State of Alaska Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer
defined benefit plan,

e The State of Alaska Teachers' Retirement System (TRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan,

e The University of Alaska Optional Retirement Plan (ORP), a single-employer defined
contribution plan.

In addition, substantially all eligible employees participate in the University of Alaska Pension Plan, a
supplemental single-employer defined contribution plan.

State legislation enacted in July 2005 offers new eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2006
defined contribution retirement plans under PERS and TRS.

The University of Alaska Retirement Program, a single-employer defined contribution plan, which
includes participation in both the ORP (Tier III) and the University of Alaska Pension Plan, is also
effective for new participants hired on or after July 1, 2006.

Each new eligible employee will have a choice to participate in the applicable state plan or the
University of Alaska Retirement Program.

None of the retirement systems or plans own any notes, bonds or other instruments of the university.
Defined Benefit Plans:
State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The university contributes to PERS, a defined benefit, agent multiple-employer public employee
retirement system established and administered by the state of Alaska. PERS provides pension,
postemployment health care, death and disability benefits to eligible participants. Benefit and
contribution provisions are established by state law and may be amended only by the state legislature.

Each fiscal year, PERS issues a publicly available financial report which includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of
Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau,
Alaska, 99811-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

Employee contribution rates are 7.5 percent for peace officers and firefighters and 6.75 percent for
other employees, as required by state statute. The funding policy for PERS provides for periodic
employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of annual
covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate the assets to pay benefits when due. However, the 2008
actuarially determined rate was 28.23 percent of applicable gross pay and the employer contribution
rate was capped by the state at 22 percent. Additionally, the state appropriated funding directly to the
PERS defined benefit plan to augment the PERS employers’ contribution for fiscal year 2008. The
university recognized $7,672,429 in state on-behalf pension payments for the PERS defined benefit
plan.
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The university’s annual pension cost for the current year and related information is as follows:

Pension
Contribution rates:
Employee:
Peace officers and firefighters 3.83%
Other employees 3.44%
Employer 11.22%
Annual pension/OPEB cost $18,391,477
Contributions made $18,116,422
Actuarial assumptions:
Inflation rate 3.50%
Investment return 8.25%
Projected salary increase:
Inflation 3.50%
Productivity and merit:
Peace officers and firefighters 2.50%
Others 2.00%
Health cost trend
Medical N/A
Pharmacy N/A

Postemployment

healthcare

3.67%
3.31%
10.78%

$17,656,104
$17,392,050

Same
Same

N/A

N/A
N/A

8.50%
12.00%

Total

7.50%
6.75%
22.00%

$36,047,581
$35,508,472

An actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2005 set the contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2008.
The projected unit credit method was used and the initial unfunded accrued liability and future

gains/losses are being amortized on a 25-year fixed period level percentage of pay.

The university’s net pension obligation (NPO) for fiscal year 2008 was as follows:

Annual required contribution

Interest on net pension obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost (APC)
Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation beginning of year

Net pension obligation end of year

Three year trend information for pension benefits follows:

Year Percentage
Ended of APC
June 30 APC Contributed
2006 $18,116,634 66.92%
2007 $18,801,669 83.19%
2008 $18,391,477 98.50%

$ 18,116,422
1,295,840

(1,020.,785)

18,391,477
18.116.422)

275,055
18,733.288

$ 19,008,343

NPO

$15,572,221
$18,733,288
$19,008,343
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The university’s net other postemployment obligation (OPEB) for fiscal year 2008 was as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 17,392,050
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,244,026
Adjustment to annual required contribution (979.972)
Annual OPEB cost 17,656,104
Contributions made (17,392.050)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 264,054
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 12,052,964
Net OPEB obligation end of year $12.317.018
Three year trend information for postemployment healthcare benefits follows:
Year Annual Percentage of
Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
June 30 Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2006 $12,107,981 66.92% $ 9,824,318
2007 $13,255,737 83.19% $12,052,964
2008 $17,656,104 98.50% $12,317,018

Funding Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for pension and other postemployment healthcare benefits. The funded status of
PERS for pension and other postemployment healthcare benefits (OPEB) as of June 30, 2006, was as
follows ($ in thousands):

Pension OPEB Total
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 522,315 $ 468,355 $ 990,670
Actuarial value of plan assets 456,238 195,281 651,519
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ (66,077) $(273.074) $(339.151)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 87% 42% 66%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 135,451 $ 135,451 $ 135,451
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 49% 202% 172%

PERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan Changes

The Alaska Legislature Senate Bill 125, signed into law April 9, 2008, converts PERS from an agent
multiple-employer plan to a cost-sharing plan effective July 1, 2008. This change provided for an
integrated system of accounting for all employers. Under the integrated system, the PERS defined
benefit plans’ unfunded liability will be shared among all employers. The Bill also established a
uniform PERS employer contribution rate of 22 percent of participating employees’ covered payroll.
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State of Alaska Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS)

Plan Description

TRS provides pension, postemployment health care, death and disability benefits to participants.
Benefit and contribution provisions are established by state law and may be amended only by the state
legislature.

Each fiscal year, TRS issues a publicly available financial report which includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of
Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau,
Alaska, 99811-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460.

Funding Policy

Employees contribute 8.65 percent of their base salary as required by state statute. The funding policy
for TRS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined and ARMB approved
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. During fiscal year 2008, contractually required employee and
employer contribution rates were 8.65 percent and 12.56 percent, respectively. No net pension or
OPEB obligation is recorded for TRS, since according to GASB 27 and GASB 45 no such obligation is
recorded for cost-sharing defined benefit plans when an employer’s contribution equals the
contractually required contribution. The amounts contributed to TRS by the university during the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $5,444,878, $11,177,596, and $9,167,681,
respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for each year.

The actuarially determined employer contribution rate for 2008 was 42.26 percent. Upon
consideration of actuarial reports on the funded status of the TRS defined benefit plan, the ARMB
approved an employer contribution rate of 54.03 percent for FY08. As provided by Alaska Statute AS
14.25.070(a), the Legislature appropriated funding directly to the TRS defined benefit plan to augment
the TRS employers’ contribution for FY08. For fiscal year 2008, the university recognized
$20,790,988 in state on-behalf pension payments for the TRS defined benefit plan.

Defined Contribution Plans:
State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

For eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2006, the university contributes to PERS (Tier IV), a
hybrid defined contribution and OPEB cost-sharing defined benefit plan established and administered
by the state of Alaska. PERS provides pension, post employment health care, and occupational death
and disability benefits to eligible participants. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by
state law and may be amended only by the state legislature.

Each fiscal year, PERS issues a publicly available financial report which includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of
Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau,
Alaska, 99811-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460.

Employee contribution rates are 8 percent and employer contributions are 5 percent of covered payroll
for fiscal years 2008 and 2007. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the university’s total
covered payroll for the PERS plan was approximately $3.2 million and $1.3 million, and contributions
made by the university totaled $158,626 and $66,682, respectively.
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On July 1, 2006, the Public Employees’ and Teachers’ Retiree Major Medical Insurance Plan (RMP)
and Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan (HRA) were created. A separate stand-alone financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information is issued for RMP
and HRA. These reports may be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of
Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or
by calling (907) 465-4460.

PERS defined contribution participants are eligible members of RMP and HRA. The employer RMP
contribution rates for fiscal year 2008 and 2007 are 0.99 percent and 1.75 percent for medical
coverage, and 0.58 percent and 0.3 percent (1.33 percent and 0.4 percent for peace officers and
firefighters) for occupational death and disability benefit contributions, respectively. For fiscal years
2008 and 2007, the HRA employer contributions are at 3 percent of the employer’s average annual
employee compensation, based on the participant’s employment classification.

The amounts contributed to the RMP by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
were $50,374 and $27,183, respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for each year.

Contributions to the HRA by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were
$137,148 and $70,096, respectively.

State of Alaska Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS)

For eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2006, the university contributes to TRS (Tier III), a
hybrid defined contribution and OPEB cost-sharing defined benefit plan established and administered
by the state of Alaska. TRS provides pension, postemployment health care, and occupational death and
disability benefits to eligible participants. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by state
law and may be amended only by the state legislature.

Each fiscal year, TRS issues a publicly available financial report which includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of
Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau,
Alaska, 99811-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460.

Employee contribution rates are 8 percent and employer contributions are 7 percent of covered payroll
for fiscal years 2008 and 2007. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the university’s total
covered payroll for the TRS plan was approximately $1.8 million and $0.9 million, and contributions
made by the university totaled $129,000 and $60,403, respectively.

On July 1, 2006, the Public Employees’ and Teachers’ Retiree Major Medical Insurance Plan (RMP)
and Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan (HRA) were created. A separate stand-alone financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information is issued for RMP
and HRA. These reports may be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of
Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or
by calling (907) 465-4460.

TRS defined contribution participants are eligible members of RMP and HRA. The employer RMP
contribution rates for fiscal year 2008 and 2007 are 0.99 percent and 1.75 percent for medical
coverage, and 0.62 percent and 0 percent for occupational death and disability benefit contributions,
respectively. For fiscal years 2008 and 2007, the HRA employer contributions are at 3 percent of the
employer’s average annual employee compensation, based on the participant’s employment
classification.

The amounts contributed to the RMP by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
were $29,682 and $15,087, respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for each year.
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Contributions to the HRA by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were
$53,701 and $28,415, respectively.

University of Alaska Optional Retirement Plan (ORP)

The ORP is comprised of three layers of participants, the original ORP or ORP Tier 1, ORP Tier 2
which was created for participants hired on or after July 1, 2005, and ORP Tier 3 which was created
for participants hired on or after July 1, 2006. For ORP Tier 1 and ORP Tier 2, faculty classified as
regular and certain administrators made a one-time election to participate in the ORP as an alternative
to participation in the defined benefit plans, PERS or TRS. For ORP Tier 3, each new eligible
employee may make a one-time election to participate in the University of Alaska Retirement Program
(includes ORP Tier 3 and the University of Alaska Pension Plan) as an alternative to participation in
the State of Alaska defined contribution plans, PERS or TRS. The ORP is an employer funded defined
contribution plan which operates in conjunction with a companion mandatory tax-deferred annuity
plan.

ORP Tier 1

The ORP Tier 1 participants make employee contributions to one of the plan’s annuity programs at a
rate of 8.65 percent of covered payroll. The university contributes to one of the plan’s authorized
employee-selected annuity providers or investment managers at a rate equal to the three-year moving
average of the TRS employer contribution rates (19.85 percent for FY08 and 21 percent for FY07).

In fiscal year 2008 and 2007, the university’s total covered payroll for the ORP Tier 1 plan was
approximately $50.1 million and $52 million, respectively. The amounts contributed to the ORP Tier 1
by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $9,945,730, $10,927,908
and $8,907,978, respectively.

ORP Tier 2

The ORP Tier 2 participants make employee contributions to one of the plan’s annuity programs at a
rate of 8.65 percent of covered payroll. The university contributed to one of the plan’s authorized
employee-selected annuity providers or investment managers at a rate of 12 percent of covered payroll
for fiscal years 2008 and 2007.

In fiscal year 2008 and 2007, the university’s total covered payroll for the ORP Tier 2 plan was
approximately $5.1 million and $5.7 million, respectively. The amounts contributed to the ORP Tier 2
by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $614,390, $683,786 and
$484,288, respectively.

The ORP Tier 2 plan was available for newly-hired ORP benefit-eligible employees hired in fiscal year
2006. As of July 1, 2006, the ORP Tier 2 plan was no longer available to newly-hired ORP benefit-
eligible employees.

ORP Tier 3

The ORP Tier 3 is eligible for employees hired on or after July 1, 2006. The ORP Tier 3 participants
make employee contributions to one of the plan’s annuity programs at a rate of 8 percent of covered
payroll. The university contributed to one of the plan’s authorized employee-selected annuity
providers or investment managers at a rate of 12 percent of covered payroll for fiscal years 2008 and
2007.

In fiscal years 2008 and 2007, the university’s total covered payroll for the ORP Tier 3 plan was
approximately $30.8 million and $12.3 million, respectively. The amounts contributed to the ORP Tier
3 by the university during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $3,700,880 and $1,473,090,

respectively.
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Plan Assets

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, plan assets (participants’ accounts attributable to employer contributions)
had a net value of approximately $98.9 million for ORP Tier 1, ORP Tier 2 and ORP Tier 3, and $92.3
million for ORP Tier 1, ORP Tier 2 and ORP Tier 3, respectively. ORP Tier 1 and ORP Tier 2
participants are 100 percent vested at all times. University contributions for ORP Tier 3 participants
are 100 percent vested after three years of service.

University of Alaska Pension Plan (Pension)

In addition to the other retirement plans, substantially all regular employees (hired before July 1, 2006)
and certain faculty classified as temporary participate in the Pension plan which was established
effective January 1, 1982, when the university withdrew from the federal social security program.
Eligible employees, hired on or after July 1, 2006, electing to participate in the University of Alaska
Retirement Program also participate in the Pension plan. Effective January 1, 2008, employer
contributions for regular employees were 7.65 percent of covered wages up to a maximum of $42,000
and $102,000 for certain faculty classified as temporary. The plan provides for employer contributions
to be invested in accordance with participant-directed investment elections to the plan's fixed income
and/or equity funds. Participants hired before July 1, 2006 are 100 percent vested at all times.
University contributions for participants hired on or after July 1, 2006 are 100 percent vested after
three years of service.

In 2008 and 2007, the university's total covered payroll for the Pension plan was approximately $175.7
million and $175.3 million, respectively. The university's costs to fund and administer the plan totaled
$13.4 million, or 7.65 percent of covered payroll. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, plan assets (participants'
accounts) had a net value of approximately $298.9 million and $318.8 million, respectively.

Insurance and Risk Management:

The university is exposed to a wide variety of risks including property loss, bodily and personal injury,
intellectual property, errors and omissions, aviation and marine. Exposures are handled with a
combination of self-insurance, commercial insurance, and membership in a reciprocal risk retention
group. The university is self-insured up to the maximum of $2 million per occurrence for casualty
claims and $250,000 for property claims. Commercial carriers provide coverage in excess of these
amounts. Health care, workers’ compensation and unemployment claims are fully self-insured.

Liabilities have been established to cover estimates for specific reported losses, estimates for
unreported losses based upon past experience modified for current trends, and estimates of expenses
for investigating and settling claims.

Changes in applicable liability amounts follow ($ in thousands):

Balance Provision Claims Balance
July 1, 2007 for Claims Payment  June 30, 2008
Health $ 6,862 $ 49,052 $ (48,116) $ 7,798
General liability 5,075 857 (570) 5,362
Workers’ compensation 6,161 1,688 (1,798) 6,051
Unemployment 70 303 (301) 72

$ 18,168 $ 51900 § (50,785) $ 19,283
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Balance Provision Claims Balance
July 1,2006 for Claims Payment  June 30, 2007
Health $ 6,404 $ 45,764  $ (45,300) $ 6,862
General liability 7,518 743 (3,186) 5,075
Workers’ compensation 5,778 2,075 (1,692) 6,161
Unemployment 69 316 (315) 70

$ 19,769 $ 48898 $ (50.499) § 18,168

Commitments and Contingencies:

Amounts received and expended by the university under various federal and state grants, contracts and
other programs are subject to audit and potential disallowance. From time to time the university is
named as a defendant in legal proceedings or cited in regulatory actions related to the conduct of its
operations. In the normal course of business, the university also has various other commitments and
contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. In the opinion
of management, the university will not be affected materially by the final outcome of any of these legal
proceedings, environmental investigations, audit adjustments, or other commitments and contingent
liabilities. In addition, an ongoing environmental assessment for the Northwest Campus Front Street
property is discussed below:

e The university received a Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) letter from the Alaska
Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) in August 2006. The letter identified the
university as one of the potential parties that may be responsible for cleanup costs of soil
contamination found during a water line improvement project next to Northwest Campus
property. The extent of the contamination source, the number of potentially responsible
parties, and remediation costs are being assessed but the outcome is unknown.

University of Alaska Foundation:

The University of Alaska Foundation (foundation) is a legally separate, non profit organization formed
in 1974 to solicit donations for the exclusive benefit of the University of Alaska. During 2008 and
2007, the university transferred $1.1 million and $1 million, to the foundation, of which institutional
support comprised $0.9 million and $0.8 million, respectively. For the same periods, the foundation
reimbursed the university for operating expenses totaling $1.8 million and $1.5 million, respectively.
At June 30, 2008 and 2007, distributions and expenditures by the foundation for the benefit of the
university totaled $15.4 million and $15.5 million, of which $14.9 million and $15.2 million were
direct reimbursements to the university. Additionally, the foundation owed the university $2 million at
June 30, 2008 and $1.9 million at June 30, 2007, primarily for reimbursement of expenditures on grants
provided by the foundation.

The investable resources of the university’s land grant endowment trust fund and the foundation’s
pooled endowment funds are combined into a consolidated endowment fund for investment purposes.
At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of the fund was $259.3 million and $266.5 million,
respectively. The university’s share of this fund was $143.1 million and $147.0 million, which is
reflected in endowment investments. The fund is managed by the foundation’s investment committee
and treasurer on a total return basis in accordance with an investment policy approved by the Board of
Regents. The net assets and related activity for the university’s land grant endowment trust’s
investment in the fund is reflected in the university’s financial statements.
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Functional Classifications with Natural Classifications:

The university’s operating expenses by natural classification were as follows ($ in thousands):

Year ended June 30, 2008

Compensation Contractual Supplies & Student  Depre-
& Benefits Services  Materials Other Aid ciation Total
Instruction $ 149,943 $ 23,768 $ 9,199 § 280 $ - § - $183,190
Academic support 39,300 5,926 6,888 60 - - 52,174
Research 83,739 29,198 8,751 155 - - 121,843
Public service 23,905 9,919 2,042 197 - - 36,063
Student services 33,020 9,817 2,536 64 - - 45,437
Operations and
maintenance 25,065 15,692 12,998 1,228 - - 54,983
Institutional support 62,328 15,153 4,243 887 - - 82,611
Student aid - - - - 14,879 - 14,879
Auxiliary enterprises 9,378 16,712 13,194 126 - - 39,410
Depreciation - - - - - 56,883 56,883
NPO, OPEB and state
on-behalf payments - - - 29,003 - - 29,003
$426,678 $126,185 $ 59.851 $32,000 $14,879 $56.883 $716.476
Year ended June 30, 2007
Compensation Contractual Supplies & Student  Depre-
& Benefits Services  Materials Other Aid ciation Total
Instruction $146,619 $ 24561 $ 9869 § 126 §$ - § - $181,175
Academic support 37,301 6,524 6,781 53 - - 50,659
Research 83,740 37,427 10,071 45 - - 131,283
Public service 22,556 8,422 1,661 287 - - 32,926
Student services 30,183 8,714 2,803 190 - - 41,890
Operations and
maintenance 23,638 13,528 11,963 1,087 - - 50,216
Institutional support 53,602 10,679 4339 942 - - 69,562
Student aid - - - - 13,566 - 13,566
Auxiliary enterprises 9,338 14,967 14,217 159 - - 38,681
Depreciation - - - - - 57,455 57,455
NPO and OPEB - - - 5.389 - - 5,389
$ 406,977 $124822 $ 61704 $ 8278 $13.566 $57.455 $672.802



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Funding Progress for PERS

($ in thousands):

Actuarial Actuarial  Actuarial
valuation value accrued
year ended of plan liability
June 30 assets (AAL)
Pension benefits:
2004 $326,815 $444,092
2005 $307,243 $441,742
*2006 $456,238 $522,315
Postemployment healthcare benefits:
2004 $230,444 $313,137
2005 $294,945  $424,061
*2006 $195281 $468,355
Total:
2004 $557,259 $757,229
2005 $602,188 $ 865,803
*2006 $651,519  $990,670

(Unfunded)
overfunded UAAL asa
actuarial percentage
accrued of
liability =~ Funded Covered covered
(UAAL) ratio payroll  payroll
$(117,277) 74% $ 116,156 101%
$ (134,499) 70% $ 124,699 108%
$ (66,077) 87% $ 135,451 49%
$ (82,693) 74% $ 116,156 71%
$(129,116) 70% $ 124,699 104%
$ (273,074) 42% $ 135,451 202%
$(199,970) 74% $ 116,156 89%
$ (263,615) 70% $ 124,699 106%
$(339,151) 66% $ 135,451 172%

Note: On July 1, 2008, PERS became a cost sharing plan and the state of Alaska will not be publishing

a Supplement to the Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2007.

* The actuarial cost method was changed from Projected Unit Credit to Entry Age Normal effective
with the June 30, 2006 valuation.
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and

investments

Education Trust of Alaska

Accounts and notes receivable, less allowance

of $5,239
State appropriations receivable
Inventories
Other assets
Investment in plant, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Security deposits and other liabilities
Accrued annual leave

Capital appropriation advances

Net pension and OPEB obligations
Deferred lease revenue

Long-term debt

Interfund

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Unrestricted:
Designated
General
Retirement of indebtedness
Renewals and replacements
Undesignated
Restricted:
Grants refundable
Federal loan programs
Established by donors
Education Trust of Alaska
Unexpended plant
Retirement of indebtedness
Net investment in plant
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Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Current Funds Student
Loan
Unrestricted Restricted Funds

$ 113,429,375 $ 680,040 $ 73,670

7,030,938 42,276,532 5,580

8,105,651 - -

716,647 7,800 -

$ 129,282,611 $ 42,964,372 $ 79,250
$ 51,529,258 $ 3,052,905 $ (490)
4,767,395 171,783 (19,209)

10,458,912 - -

31,325,361 - -
98,080,926 3,224,688 (19,699)
(27,178,591) 39,220,866 (172,172)

21,680,400 - -

36,699,876 - -

- 518,818 -

- - 77,168

- - 193,953

58,380,276 518,818 271,121

$ 129282611 $ 42,964,372 $ 79,250




Schedule 0.3

Sheet 1 of 1
Education
Endowment Trust of Alaska Plant Agency Total
Funds Fund Funds Funds Funds

$ 144,776,820 $ - $ 24,833,733 $ 5,236 $ 283,798,874
- 8,569,221 - - 8,569,221

4,583,259 124,276 11,337,776 (1,893) 65,356,468

- - 1,216,607 - 1,216,607

- - - 4,532 8,110,183

45,000,666 - 50,000 - 45,775,113

- - 791,926,033 - 791,926,033

$ 194,360,745 $ 8,693,497 $ 829,364,149 $ 7,875 $ 1,204,752,499
$ 19,141 $ 3,750 $ 9,447,443 $ 59,545 $ 64,111,552
47,000 3,520,000 - 2,058,401 10,545,370

- - - 10,458,912

- - 5,463,559 5,463,559

- - - 31,325,361

- - 7,365,750 7,365,750

5,847,460 - 130,830,766 136,678,226
5,913,601 3,523,750 153,107,518 265,948,730
1,026,532 (3,212) (10,783,352) (2,110,071) -
27,228,123 - - 48,908,523

- - 1,493,645 1,493,645

- - 7,497,924 7,497,924

- - - 36,699,876

- - - 518,818

- - - 77,168

160,192,489 - - 160,386,442

- 5,172,959 - 5,172,959

- - 20,667,985 20,667,985

] ; 4,311,349 4,311,349

- - 653,069,080 653,069,080

187,420,612 5,172,959 687,039,983 938,803,769
194,360,745 8,693,497 829,364,149 1,204,752,499
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UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA
Statement of Change in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues and other additions:
Tuition and fees, net
State appropriations - operating
State on-behalf contributions - pension
State appropriations - capital or other
Federal appropriations
Local appropriations
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Investment income
Endowment proceeds, investment income (loss)
Sales and services, educational departments
Sales and services, auxiliary enterprises
Bond proceeds
Recovery of facilities and administrative costs
Other income
Additions for plant facilities
Retirement of indebtedness

Total revenues and other additions

Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general expenditures
Instruction
Academic support
Research
Public service
Student service
Operations and maintenance
Institutional support
Student aid
Auxiliary enterprises
Facilities and administrative costs recovered
NPO, OPEB and state on-behalf payments
Depreciation expense
Loss on disposal of equipment
Retirement of indebtedness
Interest on indebtedness
Expended for plant facilities
Other
Disposal of plant assets
Increase in net indebtedness
Total expenditures and other deductions
Transfers between funds:
Mandatory:
Principal and interest, educational plant
Principal and interest, auxiliary enterprises
Endowment
Unexpended plant
Nonmandatory
Net transfers between funds
Net increase (decrease) in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year
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Current Funds Student Endowment
Loan and Similar
Unrestricted Restricted Funds Funds
$ 92,083,271 $ - $ - $ -
300,026,900 - - -
28,463,417 - - -
- 2,991,385 - -
716,731 - - -
72,990 136,424,345 555 -
3,878 13,139,548 - -
101,402 3,371,112 - -
5,085,926 40,899,349 - -
2,528,769 2,517 2,993 -
5,476,256 16,681 - (4,408,825)
3,034,359 310,569 - -
41,011,131 - - R
30,731,085 - - -
14,326,390 130,397 - -
523,662,505 197,285,903 3,548 (4,408,825)
159,163,945 25,582,294 - -
49,694,606 4,350,639 - -
35,289,433 92,384,127 - -
12,711,503 22,319,333 - -
41,627,962 3,898,674 - -
57,028,109 920,614 - -
80,909,646 2,894,016 - -
6,090,336 8,786,214 - -
42,765,207 - - -
178,321 29,563,575 - -
29,002,526 - - -
- - - (105,000)
- - - 369,685
- - 2,535 95,255
514,461,594 190,699,486 2,535 359,940
(7,944,962) - - -
(2,217,851) - - -
(136) (52) - 188
3,947,962 (6,948,903) - (1,969,103)
(6,214,987) (6,948,955) - (1,968,915)
2,985,924 (362,538) 1,013 (6,737,680)
55,394,352 881,356 270,108 194,158,292
$ 58,380,276 $ 518,818 $ 271,121 $ 187,420,612




Education
Trust of Alaska
Fund

Plant Funds

Unexpended

Retirement of
Indebtedness

Renewals and
Replacements

Investment
in Plant

Schedule 0.4
Sheet 1 of 1

Total

$ -

45,508,921

3,358,452
40,889,962
406
533,633
399,692

23,795,000

$

$

112,741,391
5,380,803

92,083,271
300,026,900
28,463,417
45,508,921
2,991,385
716,731
139,856,342
54,033,388
3,472,920
46,518,908
4,478,254
1,084,112
3,344,928
41,011,131
23,795,000
30,731,085
14,456,787
112,741,391
5,380,803

1,369,432

114,486,066

123,519

118,122,194

950,695,674

2,609,821

989,189

91,988,603
6,404,732

5,485,803
4,541,789

37,965

56,883,288
739,930

120,000
24,017,551

184,746,239
54,045,245
127,673,560
35,030,836
45,526,636
57,948,723
83,803,662
14,876,550
42,765,207
30,731,085
29,002,526
56,883,288
739,930
5,380,803
4,911,474
91,988,603
9,150,308
120,000
24,017,551

2,609,821

99,382,524

10,065,557

81,760,769

899,342,226

(651,899)

2,602,223

7,944,962
2,217,851

651,899
72,970

1,013,851

1,281,000

1,950,324

10,887,682

1,013,851

1,281,000

(1,240,389)

17,053,866

873,457

1,137,370

37,642,425

51,353,448

6,413,348

3,614,119

4,931,537

6,360,554

615,426,655

887,450,321

$ 5,172,959 $ 20,667,985 $ 5,804,994 $ 7,497,924 $ 653,069,080 $ 938,803,769
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